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shall state the reasons for the denial;
and

(b) provide the applicant with the
option to request a hearing on the
decision, which shall follow the
procedures at Part 7, Section 2.6.

2.3 Procedure for Suspension or
Revocation: Upon reasonable basis for
belief that a licensee has violated the
Ordinance, the Board shall either
undertake an investigation of the person
under Part 7, Section 2.4, or
immediately issue a notice of violation
under Part 7, Section 2.5.

2.4 Investigation: The Board may
investigate and examine the operation
and premises of any person within its
jurisdiction in accordance with Part 2,
Section 2.2:

(a) upon complaint;

(b) upon its own initiative when there
is a reasonable basis for belief there has
been a violation of the Ordinance;

(c) or whenever necessary to perform
its duties and exercise its powers under
the Ordinance.

2.5 Notice of Violation: The Board
may serve any notice of violation to a
licensee or Key Participant explaining
the basis and the aggrieved party’s right
to request a hearing, which request shall
be in writing and made within ten (10)
days of receipt of the notice.

2.6 Hearings; Notice; Due Process;
Arbiter; Appeals:

(a) within ten (10) days after receiving
a request for a hearing, the Board shall
schedule a hearing and issue a notice
identifying the issues to be resolved,
and the date, time and location of the
hearing, which shall be set no sooner
than five (5) days after receipt of the
request for a hearing but no later than
sixty (60) days after receipt of request
for a hearing;

(b) at the hearing, the affected parties
shall be provided the opportunity to
present oral or written testimony and
other evidence to dispute the violation;

(c) the Board may promulgate rules
governing the hearing procedures;

(d) the Chairman of the Board will
preside over the hearing;

(e)the Board shall issue a written
decision within thirty (30) days after the
hearing; and

(f) affected parties may appeal the
Board’s decision by filing a written
appeal to the Tribal Council within
twenty (20) days of receiving the
Board’s final written decision, which
shall be placed on the Tribal Council’s
agenda at its earliest convenience but no
later than sixty (60) days after the notice
of appeal is filed, which decision of the
tribal Council on appeal shall be final
and is not subject to further appeal.

Section 3

Cease and Desist Orders for
Unlicensed Persons: For any person
violating the Ordinance, a person who
does not hold a valid license, or there
is reasonable cause that any applicable
law is being violated, the Board shall
issue a cease and desist order. Any
Person who does not comply with the
cease and desist order will be subject to
further enforcement action under Part 7,
Section 4.

Section 4
Civil Penalties

4.1 Fines for Civil Violations: Any
person who fails to comply with a final
order of the Board or Tribal Council
under Part 7, Section 2, or a cease and
desist order issued pursuant to Part 7,
Section 3, may be required to pay a civil
fine to the Board pursuant to
regulations. For purposes of this section,
multiple violations originating from the
same act or omission will be treated as
one violation for purposes of assessing
civil fines.

4.2 Civil Action for Penalties: In
enforcing fines and violations under this
Section, the Board may proceed in the
name of the Tribe against a person by
filing civil complaint in a court of
competent jurisdiction.
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BILLING CODE 4337-15-P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Land Management
[BLM_OR FRN_MO4500170769]

Notice of Proposed Withdrawal and
Opportunity for Public Meeting;
Oregon
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ACTION: Notice of proposed withdrawal.

SUMMARY: At the request of the Bureau
of Land Management (BLM), the
Secretary of the Interior proposes to
withdraw 103.92 acres of public lands
in Douglas County, Oregon, from
location and entry under the United
States mining laws, but not from leasing
under the mineral and geothermal
leasing laws, for a period of 20 years,
subject to valid existing rights, to
protect the unique recreational values as
well as current and future site
improvements at three public recreation
sites. An additional 21.20 acres of
public lands with non-Federal mineral
interest and 38.50 acres of non-Federal
lands, if acquired by the United States,
would also be subject to the withdrawal.

This notice segregates these lands for up
to 2 years from location or entry under
the United States mining laws, initiates
a 90-day public comment period, and
announces an opportunity to request a
public meeting.

DATES: Comments and requests for a
public meeting must be received on or
before October 23, 2023.

ADDRESSES: All comments and meeting
requests should be sent to the BLM
Oregon/Washington State Director, PO
Box 2965, Portland, Oregon 97208. The
application and the case file are
available for public inspection at the
Bureau of Land Management, 1220 SW
3rd Avenue, Portland, OR 97204.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Luke Poff, Realty Specialist, BLM
Oregon/Washington State Office, at
503-808-6001, by email at Ipoff@
blm.gov, or at the address noted above.
Individuals in the United States who are
deaf, deafblind, hard of hearing, or have
a speech disability may dial 711 (TTY,
TDD, or TeleBraille) to access
telecommunications relay services.
Individuals outside the United States
should use the relay services offered
within their country to make
international calls to the point-of-
contact in the United States.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The BLM
filed a petition/application requesting
the Secretary withdraw the following
described public lands located in
Douglas County, Oregon, from location
and entry under the United States
mining laws, but not from leasing under
the mineral and geothermal leasing
laws, subject to valid existing rights, to
protect the unique recreational values as
well as current and future site
improvements at three public recreation
sites for a 20-year term:

Iron Mountain Recreation Area

Willamette Meridian, Oregon

T.31S,R.7W,

Sec. 4, NEV4SEV4, excepting that portion
granted to the railroad under the Act of
July 25, 1866 (14 Stat. 239).

The area described contains 36.60 acres.

Olalla-Thompson Creek Day Use Area

Willamette Meridian, Oregon

T.30S.,R.7W.,
Sec. 5, SW14NEV4SWVa, SEVaNWV4SWa,
and NV2NEVaSWVaSWVa,
The area described contains 25.00 acres.

Island Creek Recreation Area

Willamette Meridian, Oregon

T.31S,R.7W,,
Sec. 1, lot 5, excepting that portion of lot
5 granted to the railroad under the Act
of July 25, 1866 (14 Stat. 239).
The area described contains 42.32 acres.
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The following described public lands
with non-Federal mineral interests, if
mineral rights are acquired by United
States, will be subject to the terms and
conditions of this withdrawal as
described in paragraph 1:

Island Creek Recreation Area

Willamette Meridian, Oregon
T.30S.,R.7W.,

Sec. 36, those portions of the
SvSWV4SEY4SWV4 and the
Sv2SEV4aSEV2SW14 lying between the
ordinary high-water mark of the easterly
bank of Cow Creek and the southerly
boundary of the Oregon & California
Railroad Grant patent dated May 6, 1896.

T.31S,R.7W,,

Sec. 1, that portion of the NW/aNW14
lying between the ordinary high-water
mark of the southwesterly bank of Cow
Creek and the southerly boundary of the
Oregon & California Railroad Grant
patent dated May 6, 1896.

The areas described aggregate 21.20 acres.

The following described non-Federal
lands, if acquired by the United States,
will be subject to the terms and
conditions of this withdrawal as
described in paragraph 1:

Island Creek Special Recreation Site

Willamette Meridian, Oregon
T.30S.,R.7W,,

Sec. 36, SV2SW1/aSW14SWa,
SYSEVaSWVaSWVa, S1/2SWVaSEVaSW14,
and SV2SEV4SE4SWVa, excepting those
portions of the S7/2SWV4SEV4SWv4 and the
S12SEV4SEYaSW74 lying between the
ordinary high-water mark of the easterly bank
of Cow Creek and the southerly boundary of
the Oregon & California Railroad Grant patent
dated May 6, 1896.

T.31S.,R.7W,,

Sec. 1, that portion of lot 5 granted to the

railroad under the Act of July 25, 1866
(14 Stat. 239), and NW¥aNWVa,
excepting that portion of the NWVaNW14
lying between the ordinary high-water
mark of the southwesterly bank of Cow
Creek and the southerly boundary of the
Oregon & California Railroad Grant
patent dated May 6, 1896.

The areas described aggregate 38.50 acres.

The total areas described, including
public and non-Federal lands, aggregate
163.62 acres. The Secretary approved
the BLM’s petition/application.
Therefore, the petition/application
constitutes a withdrawal proposal of the
Secretary of the Interior (43 CFR
2310.1-3(e)).

The use of a right-of-way, interagency
agreement, or cooperative agreement
would not adequately constrain mineral
location and surface entry, which could
adversely affect ongoing management
activities and existing and planned
capital improvements resulting in land
use conflicts and irretrievable loss of
natural resources. Suitable alternative

sites are not available because the
recreational sites have unique values.

No water is necessary to fulfill the
purpose of the proposed withdrawal.
Records relating to this proposed
withdrawal may be examined by
contacting the BLM at the above address
and phone number.

Comments, including names and
street addresses of respondents, will be
available for public review at the
address indicated above during regular
business hours. Before including your
address, phone number, email address,
or other personal identifying
information in your comment, you
should be aware that your entire
comment—including your personally
identifying information—may be made
publicly available at any time. While
you may ask the BLM in your comment
to withhold your personal identifying
information from public review, we
cannot guarantee that we will be able to
do so.

Notice is hereby given that an
opportunity for a public meeting is
afforded in connection with the
proposed withdrawal. All interested
persons who desire a public meeting for
the purpose of being heard on the
proposed withdrawal must submit a
written request to the State Director,
BLM Oregon/Washington State Office,
at the address in the ADDRESSES section,
within 90 days from the date of
publication of this notice. If the
authorized officer determines that a
public meeting will be held, a notice of
the date, time, and place will be
published in the Federal Register and
local newspapers and posted on the
BLM website at www.blm.gov at least 30
days before the scheduled date of the
meeting.

For a period of 2 years from the date
of publication of this notice in the
Federal Register, the land will be
segregated from location or entry under
the United States mining laws unless
the application is denied or cancelled or
if the withdrawal is approved prior to
that date. The temporary uses that may
be permitted during this segregation
period are leases, licenses, permits,
rights-of-way, and disposal of mineral or
vegetative resources other than under
the mining laws.

This withdrawal application will be
processed in accordance with the
regulations set forth at 43 CFR part
2300.

(Authority: 43 U.S.C. 1714.)

Barry R. Bushue,

BLM Oregon/Washington State Director.
[FR Doc. 2023-15684 Filed 7—24-23; 8:45 am]
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INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1209]

Certain Movable Barrier Operator
Systems and Components Thereof
Notice of Commission Decision Not to
Review an Initial Determination
Granting an Unopposed Motion for
Return of Bond; Return of Bond;
Termination of Bond Return
Proceeding

AGENCY: International Trade
Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that
the U.S. International Trade
Commission has determined not to
review an initial determination (“ID”’) of
the presiding Administrative Law Judge
(“ALJ”) granting an unopposed motion
of respondent The Chamberlain Group,
LLC of Oak Brook, Illinois
(‘““Chamberlain”) for the return of the
bond it paid under the remedial orders
during the period of Presidential review.
The bond is returned to Chamberlain,
and the bond return proceeding is
terminated.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Houda Morad, Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street SW,
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202)
708-4716. Copies of non-confidential
documents filed in connection with this
investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help
accessing EDIS, please email
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General
information concerning the Commission
may also be obtained by accessing its
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov.
Hearing-impaired persons are advised
that information on this matter can be
obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202)
205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On August
10, 2020, the Commission instituted an
investigation under section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19
U.S.C. 1337 (‘“‘section 337”’), based on a
complaint filed by Overhead Door
Corporation of Lewisville, Texas and
GMI Holdings Inc. of Mount Hope, Ohio
(collectively, “Overhead Door”). See 85
FR 48264-65 (Aug. 10, 2020). The
complaint, as supplemented, alleged a
violation of section 337 based upon the
importation into the United States, the
sale for importation, and the sale within
the United States after importation of
certain movable barrier operator systems
and components thereof by reason of
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